
Legal & Governance Reform
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
HeadHead  ofof  LegalLegal  andand  GovernanceGovernance  ReformReform

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Planning and 
Licensing Committee

Enquiries to: Michael Garraway
Telephone: 01706 924716
Date: Monday, 1 February 2016

Dear Councillor

Planning and Licensing Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Planning and Licensing 
Committee to be held in Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Tuesday, 9th February 2016 
commencing at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

Please note that a site visit has been arranged for Members of the Committee as 
follows:
3.45pm: Meet at the rear entrance to Number One Riverside
4.00pm: On site at 77, Tweedale Street 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputies or staff in the 
Governance and Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Head of Legal and Governance Reform

Planning and Licensing Committee Membership 2015/16
Councillor Allen Brett
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Pat Greenall
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Ann Stott JP
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Carol Wardle
Councillor June West



Rochdale Borough Council

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 9th February 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 2

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 3 - 13

- To consider the minutes of the meetings held on 7th December 
2015 and 12th January 2016.

3.  Applications for Town Green or Village Green 14 - 17

4.  Submitted Planning Applications 18 - 25

5.  Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider excluding the press and public from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended.

6.  Planning Appeals Update 26 - 29



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.



PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
7th December 2015

PRESENT:  Councillor Carol Wardle (Chair); Councillors Brett, Clegg, Greenall, 
O'Neill, Rashid, Rush, Sheerin, Stott and West

OFFICERS:  R. Coley (Economy Directorate), L. Houghton (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate), B. Wilkinson (Public Health Directorate), B. Power and M. Garraway 
(Resources Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillors Linden and Zaheer; 28 members of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Susan Emmott and Councillor Sullivan

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
39 There were no declarations of interest.

Following a submission by a member of the public the Head of Legal and 
Governance advised the Committee, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, 
that neither Councillor Rashid nor Councillor Brett had an interest to declare in 
planning application 15/00639 at 51-63 Tweedale Street, Rochdale.

MINUTES
40 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meetings held on 21st September, 6th 
October and 9th November 2015, be approved as correct records. 

FULL APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION OF A MILL BUILDING INTO 22 FLATS 
INCLUDING DEMOLITION OF ALL REMAINING BUILDINGS AND PARTIAL 
DEMOLITION OF THE MILL CHIMNEY INCLUDING AN OUTLINE APPLICATION 
(INCLUDING ACCESS) FOR THE ERECTION OF 80 DWELLINGS AT THE 
FORMER DEXINE RUBBER CO. LTD, SPOTLAND ROAD, ROCHDALE
41 The Director of Economy introduced planning application 15/00463 a full 
application for the conversion of a mill building into 22 flats including demolition of all 
remaining buildings and partial demolition of the mill chimney; including an Outline 
application (including access) for the erection of 80 dwellings at the Former Dexine 
Rubber Co. Ltd, Spotland Road, Rochdale.

In introducing the application the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Committee earlier in the day.   The Planning Officer advised 
Members of minor amendments to condition 5, as detailed within the submitted 
report.

The Committee considered the views of Mr C. Falkner who addressed the Committee 
objecting to the application.

The Committee considered the views of Mr C. Greaves of Hallmark Developments 
who addressed the Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That planning permission be approved subject to conditions as 
detailed by the Planning Officer from within the submitted report.



CHANGE OF USE OF DEVELOPMENT CONSISTING OF 3 NO.GROUND FLOOR 
RETAIL UNITS AND 6 NO SELF-CONTAINED APARTMENTS OVER FIRST AND 
SECOND FLOORS AT 51 - 63 TWEEDALE STREET, ROCHDALE,
42 The Director of Economy introduced planning application 15/00639 for the 
change of use of a development consisting of 3 ground floor retail units and 6 self-
contained apartments over the first and second floors at 51 - 63 Tweedale Street, 
Rochdale.

The Committee considered the views of Mr S. Mohammad who addressed the 
Committee on behalf of objectors to the application. 

The Committee considered the views of an agent for the applicant who addressed 
the Committee in relation to the application.

The Committee considered the views of Councillors Linden and Zaheer who 
addressed the Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That planning permission be refused on the grounds that the lack 
of dedicated parking and servicing, would lead an increase in pressure for on-
street parking and congestion to the detriment of residential amenity, highway 
safety and the free flow of traffic. As such, the proposal would be detrimental 
to residential amenity and the safe and efficient operation of the highway 
network; and that, the proposed development, by reason of its design and 
height, would be out of character with surrounding area to the detriment of 
visual amenity and the character and appearance of the street scene.

DEMOLITION OF WAREHOUSE BUILDING TO NORTH OF THE SITE. ERECTION 
OF A FOODSTORE CLASS A1) AND CHANGE OF USE, SINGLE STOREY 
FRONT EXTENSION, EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO AND REFURBISHMENT OF 
EXISTING CLASS B8 BUILDING AT END SOUTH OF SITE TO PROVIDE A 
'FLEXIBLE USE' RETAIL UNIT (CLASS A1, A2, A3 OR A5) WITH ASSOCIATED 
PUBLIC REALM, VEHICULAR ACCESS, CAR PARKING, SERVICING AREAS 
AND HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING. SITE OF BELDEN CDT LTD, 
STOCKTON STREET, LITTLEBOROUGH, ROCHDALE.
43 The Director of Economy introduced planning application 15/0128 for the 
demolition of warehouse building to north of the site. Erection of a foodstore Class 
A1) and change of use, single storey front extension, external alterations to and 
refurbishment of existing Class B8 building at end south of site to provide a 'flexible 
use' retail unit (Class A1, A2, A3 or A5) with associated public realm, vehicular 
access, car parking, servicing areas and hard and soft landscaping, on the site Of 
Belden Cdt Ltd, Stockton Street, Littleborough, Rochdale.

The Planning Officer advised the Committee of amendments to condition 18 of the 
submitted report, following a consultation response received by the Environment 
Agency. 

The Committee considered a statement of objection by Mr B. Cropper and the 
response provided by the Highways Officer.

DECIDED – That planning permission be approved subject to the conditions as 
detailed within the submitted report and subsequent amendments to condition 
18. 

JUDICIAL REVIEW - TARNSIDE CLOSE



44 The Director of Economy addressed the Committee updating Members on the 
appeal in relation to an application on Tarnside Close.

DECIDED – That the report be noted. 

LICENSING POLICY UPDATE
45The Director of Public Health introduced a report consulting the Committee on a 
revised Licensing Policy, prior to recommendation by Cabinet for adoption of the 
Licensing Policy to full Council.  The purpose of the report was to enable the Council 
to meet its statutory obligation to adopt and publish a Licensing Policy, in accordance 
with section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, prior to the 31st January 2016.

The Committee were informed a draft statement of Licensing Policy has been 
updated to take into account the LGA’s best practice framework for the review of 
Council’s policy statement. Included in the review was the statutory government 
guidance section 182, for the review of licensing policies.

The Council was required to consult which commenced on the 19th October 2015 and 
will close on the 8th January 2016.

Alternatives considered: under the Licensing Act 2003, in 2011. The Policy 
Statement must be reviewed every five years.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) that Cabinet be advised this Committee believes that changes to the 
Licensing Laws, as indicated within the submitted report and in particular the 
removal of the 10 year renewal for Licence Holders will be detrimental to the 
ability of the Authority and Licence Holders to promote the licensing objectives 
of prevention of crime and disorder; Public safety; the prevention of public 
nuisance; and the protection of children from harm.

GAMBLING LICENSING POLICY UPDATE
46 The Director of Public Health introduced a report consulting the Committee on 
a revised Gambling Policy in accordance with the Gambling Act 2005.  The Council is 
required to review its policy statement every three years to meet its statutory 
requirement and adopt and publish a Gambling Licensing Policy. The Committee 
were informed that the report would be considered by Cabinet on 25th January 2016, 
prior to submission for adoption by full Council.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.



PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
12th January 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Carol Wardle (Chair); Councillors Brett, Susan Emmott, 
Greenall, O'Neill, Rush, Sheerin, Stott, Sullivan, West and Zaman

OFFICERS:  M. Robinson, R. Coley and D. Ripa (Economy Directorate); J. Gilligan 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate); C. Swift (Children’s Directorate); K. Mackenzie, B. 
Power and M. Garraway (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillors Dearnley, Duckworth, N. Emmott, Jane 
Gartside, Farnell, Linden and Winkler.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Rashid

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1 There were no declarations of interest.

ERECTION OF NEW DWELLINGHOUSE ON LAND AT BAMFORD OLD HALL, 
OFF BURY AND ROCHDALE OLD ROAD, ROCHDALE
2 The Director of Economy introduced planning application 15/01001 for the 
erection of new dwelling house on land at Bamford Old Hall, Off Bury and Rochdale 
Old Road, Rochdale.

In introducing the report the Planning Officer informed the Committee of 65 additional 
letters of objection having been received following publication of the submitted report. 
The following additional points were raised within the late submissions which had not 
been included within the submitted report, as follows:-
An objector has commissioned ‘Townscape’ – Chartered Town Planning and 
Heritage Consultant to comment on the planning application as follows:-.

 Believes that no impact assessment has been carried out of non-
designated heritage assets.

 The applicant’s site is outside of land directly associated with the 
Fenton Family in so much of the landscaped are immediately 
surrounding the former Hall. For this reason considers this element of 
significance as low.

 Has not seen any archaeological report for the application site that 
provides any evidence to the two lost buildings so the evidential value 
is questionable.

 Considers the significance of the ice house is low.
 The pond is located within open agricultural land and the map 

regression within the heritage report confirms that the pond was never 
a feature of a man made landscape or formal gardens of Bamford Hall. 
Therefore he believes it is more likely than not, that the pond was used 
as a supply of water to cattle and for crops rather than part of a formal 
landscape. 

 The stone edging could have been provided to ensure the pond doesn’t 
collapse from cattle. The pond is informal with little or no ornamentation 
that would be expected from a formal water body contributing to a 



formal landscaping park. I also note that no historical evidence has 
been provided to accurately determine the historical nature of the pond.

 The pond due to its informal nature is of low significance.
 Pleasure grounds were often designed in a formal manner and used for 

the purposes of establishing the overall character of the owner and the 
estate as a whole. He notes that no evidence has been provided to 
determine the actual design of the pleasure grounds and I believe that 
the grounds referred to are merely a woodland walk within natural 
woodland. Their significance is classified as of medium heritage 
significance and I would suggest their significance as low on the basis 
of the woodland being natural woodland and no evidence provided to 
justify its actual historic design or appearance.

  He believes that the heritage potential of the site is low significance 
and the lack of evidential and historic value does not provide enough 
justification to support the very special circumstances for development 
within the greenbelt. The heritage report relates to the historic potential 
of the former Bamford Hall as a whole, however, the application site 
was part of the farmland owned by the Bamford Hall estate and did not 
form part of the formal garden area.

 The application does not provide for any management plan/schedule of 
works or implementation strategy for the securing of the identified 
heritage assets.

 The assessment of ‘very special circumstances’ needs to be assessed 
carefully providing the applicant has provided the relevant information 
in order for the council and indeed the wider public to be sure of the 
public benefit of such a scheme. In the absence of a full and detailed 
setting assessment on adjacent heritage assets, I believe it is unlikely 
that the application as above, without such an assessment can be 
supported. The impact of the proposal, its architectural appearance and 
siting, and the harm on the openness upon the greenbelt, cannot be 
demonstrated and is also contrary to paras 128 and 129 of the NPPF.

 Note that Places Matter commented the proposal should be presented 
to them again once firm plans were in place. This assumes that Places 
Matter was presented with a draft scheme and their comments do not 
support the application as submitted for this planning application.

The Planning Officer responded to the matters raised.

The Committee considered the views of Mr S. Creswell and Mr D. Radcliffe who 
addressed the Committee on behalf of the objectors.

The Committee considered the views of the agent and architect for the applicant who 
addressed the Committee in relation to the application. 

The Committee considered the views of Councillors Duckworth and Winkler who 
addressed the Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That planning permission be refused on the grounds that the site is 
located within the Green Belt wherein there is a presumption against 
inappropriate development except in very special circumstances. The 
development would comprise the erection of a new dwelling in the Green Belt 



which would not fall within one of the exceptions to inappropriate development 
identified in Paragraph 89 of the National Planning Policy Framework or Policy 
D/4 of the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan. The proposed dwelling 
would therefore constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

AN OUTLINE APPLICATION (INCLUDING ACCESS ONLY) FOR UP TO 205 
DWELLINGS (USE CLASS C3) AND ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING, OPEN 
SPACE, ACCESS ARRANGEMENTS AND CAR PARKING PROVISION ON LAND 
OFF HOLLIN LANE, MIDDLETON (RESUBMISSION 14/00849/OUT).
3 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/01183/OUT, an outline application (including access only) for up to 205 dwellings 
(Use Class C3) and associated landscaping, open space, access arrangements and 
car parking provision on land off Hollin Lane, Middleton (resubmission 
14/00849/OUT).

Further to the submitted report the Director advised that 546 letters of objection and 3 
letters of support have been received to date. Many of these objection letters were 
received following publication of the submitted report. Approximately 340 of these 
objections were copies of a standard letter from addresses in Middleton, Oldham, 
Heywood, Radcliffe, Bury, Ramsbottom, Bacup, Blackley and Rochdale.  The 
objections were summarised as:

 No proven need for the developments - Middleton population has declined by 
over 2000 people and there are 800 houses for sale in the Middleton area.

 Greater Manchester Health and Wellbeing legislation, to which RMBC is a 
signatory, mandates that areas of social and urban deprivation, into which 
Langley and Hollin estates fall, are required to be provided with green spaces 
for wellbeing and amenity. Developing these spaces will remove that ability. 

 TW and WH are taking advantage of RMBC’s lack of an agreed or up-to-date 
UDP and the replacement Core Strategy has not been agreed. RMBC is 
therefore targeting all the remaining greenspace land in Middleton. Middleton 
is being targeted to meet the Borough quota of large housing developments 
at the expense of its green space. 

 Lanes cannot cope with any future development as traffic is already 
congested and development would have a negative impact regardless of 
traffic control measures.

 Increase in flood risk to Hollin Lane and surrounding area, drains will be 
overburdened and fields will no longer store water. 

 Additional traffic including construction traffic will accelerate need for highway 
repairs.

 Potential for increased crime and anti-social behaviour if the properties are 
bought to rent.

 Houses would have an oppressive impact on surrounding houses and would 
be over-bearing, out-of-scale and out of character in terms of its appearance 
compared with existing development in the vicinity of Hollin Lane and Langley 
Lane

The Planning and Highways Officers provided responses to each of the issues 
raised.  

Having been offered the option of addressing the Committee on applications either 
separately on each item or collectively, Mr K. Shackill, who was to address the 
Committee on behalf of the objectors in respect of each item, indicated a wish to 
make a collective address.



The Committee considered the views of Mr K. Shackill, who addressed the 
Committee in respect of this application and in respect of applications 
14/00851/OUT, on behalf of the objectors.

Having been offered the option of addressing the Committee on applications 
15/0183/OUT and 14/00851/OUT either separately on each item or collectively, Mr S 
Bell who was to address the Committee on behalf the applicant in respect of each 
item, indicated a wish to make a collective address.

The Committee considered the views of Mr S. Bell and Ms V. Eccleston on behalf of 
the applicant, who addressed the Committee in support of this application and 
application 14/00851/OUT.

The Committee further considered comments of Councillor Neil Emmott who 
addressed the Committee in respect of this application and in respect of application 
14/00851/OUT.

DECIDED – That (1) planning permission be approved subject to the conditions 
as detailed within the submitted report and the completion of a planning 
obligation under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act to secure 
the following:

a) the provision of affordable housing scheme to deliver on site 
and/or an off-site contribution in lieu of on-site provision in 
accordance with the provisions of UDP policy H/7 and its 
associated SPD: Affordable Housing;

b) a  financial contribution towards the provision of primary schools 
places in Middleton Township calculated by the pupil yield of the 
development (0.25 per dwelling) multiplied by the relevant basic 
need funding allocation (currently £631,400.51 but the final 
calculation shall be based on the multipliers in place at the 
relevant time);

c) a financial contribution towards the provision of secondary 
school places in Middleton Township calculated by the pupil yield 
of the development (0.1 per dwelling) multiplied by the relevant 
basic need funding allocation (currently £315,700.20 but the final 
calculation shall be based on the multipliers in place at the 
relevant time);

d) a financial contribution of £23,137.70 towards cycle lane 
improvements comprising new and renewed on carriageway cycle 
lanes along Hollin Lane from its junction with Langley Lane 
southeast to its junction with Rochdale Road;

e) a financial contribution towards the provision of outdoor sport 
and recreation facilities at Bowlee Playing Fields (currently up to 
£190,477.80 but the final calculation shall be based on the Sport 
England multipliers in place at the relevant time);

f) a financial contribution not exceeding £30,000 towards the 
provision of improvements at Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve;

g) a financial contribution of £20,000 for the provision of two bus 
stops on Hollin Lane;

h) a local labour scheme;
i) a scheme for the provision, implementation and management of a 

Locally Equipped Area of Play (LEAP); and 



j) a landscape and public open space plan for the provision, 
implementation and management of the landscape open space 
within the site.

(2)  the Head of Planning be authorised to issue the decision notice upon 
completion of the above and subject to conditions as detailed within the 
submitted report.

Note: In accordance with Council procedure rules Councillor S. Emmott requested 
her vote for refusing the application be recorded.   

AN OUTLINE APPLICATION (INCLUDING ACCESS ONLY) FOR UP TO 150 
DWELLINGS (USE CLASS C3), POTENTIAL PRIMARY SCHOOL SITE WITH 
ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING, OPEN SPACE, ACCESS ARRANGEMENTS AND 
CAR PARKING PROVISION ON LAND OFF LANGLEY LANE, MIDDLETON.
4 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/01195/OUT (a resubmission of 14/00851/OUT), an outline application (including 
access only) for up to 150 dwellings (Use Class C3), potential primary school site 
with associated landscaping, open space, access arrangements and car parking 
provision on land off Langley Lane, Middleton.

Further to the submitted report the Director advised 565 letters of objection and 3 
letters of support have been received to date. Many of these objection letters were 
received since publication of the submitted report, though some were from the same 
addresses. Approximately 340 of these objections are copies of a standard letter 
from addresses in Middleton, Oldham, Heywood, Radcliffe, Bury, Ramsbottom, 
Bacup, Blackley and Rochdale.

With regard to the offer of land for the purposes of a primary school, the Director 
advised that this was offered in addition to the developer contribution towards 
primary school places.  Members were advised that, should they be minded to accept 
the school land, this would be contrary to the recommendation within the submitted 
report and they would need to resolve accordingly.  

The Committee considered the views of Mr Shackill who had earlier addressed the 
Committee in consideration of application 15/01183/OUT on behalf of the objectors.

The Committee considered the views of Mr S. Bell and V. Ecclestone on behalf of the 
applicant who had earlier addressed the Committee in consideration of application 
15/01183/OUT.

The Committee considered comments of Councillor Neil Emmott who had earlier 
addressed the Committee in consideration of application 15/01183/OUT.

DECIDED – That (1) planning permission be approved for option 2, to include 
provision for a new primary school, subject to the conditions as detailed within 
the submitted report and the completion of a planning obligation under Section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act to secure the following:

a) the provision of affordable housing on site and/or an off-site 
contribution in lieu of onsite provision in accordance with the 
provisions of UDP policy H/7 and its associated SPD: Affordable 
Housing;

b) a financial contribution towards the provision of primary school 
places in Middleton Township calculated by the pupil yield of the 
development multiplied by the relevant basic need funding 



allocation (currently £462,003.75 but the final calculation shall be 
based on the multipliers in place at the relevant time);

c) a financial contribution towards the provision of secondary 
school places in Middleton Township calculated by the pupil yield 
of the development (0.1 per dwelling) multiplied by the relevant 
basic need funding allocation (currently £231,000.15 but the final 
calculation shall be based on the multipliers in place at the 
relevant time);

d) a financial contribution of £16,930.02 towards cycle lane 
improvements comprising new and renewed on carriageway cycle 
lanes along Hollin Lane from its junction with Langley Lane 
southeast to its junction with Rochdale Road;

e) a financial contribution towards the provision of outdoor sport 
and recreation facilities at Bowlee Playing Fields (currently up to 
£139,374 but the final calculation shall be based on the Sport 
England multipliers in place at the relevant time);

f) a financial contribution of £20,000 for the provision of, or 
improvements to existing, bus stops on Hollin Lane and/or 
Langley Lane;

g) a local labour scheme;
h) a scheme for the provision, implementation and management of a 

Locally Equipped Area of Play (LEAP); and
i) a landscape and public open space plan for the provision, 

implementation and management of the landscape open space 
within the site.

(2) the Head of Planning be authorised to issue the decision notice upon 
completion of the above and subject to the conditions as detailed within the 
submitted report.

Note: In accordance with Council procedure rules Councillor S. Emmott requested 
her vote for refusing the application be recorded.   

GOVERNMENT PLANNING REFORMS: PLANNING PERFORMANCE
5 The Committee received a report from the Director of Economy updating 
Members on the changes to the planning system which came into force in July 2015 
in respect of special measures designations for Local Planning Authorities and on the 
likely changes to the planning system announced by the government in the most 
recent Autumn Statement in respect of planning application performance.

The report highlighted the introduction of an increase in the percentage of major 
applications required to be determined within 13 weeks, unless an extension of time 
has been agreed with the applicant, from 40% to 50%, with a Local Planning 
Authority would be designated as being in ‘Special Measures’ where a developer can 
apply directly to the Planning Inspectorate for a decision on their application, with a 
processing fee payable to the Planning Inspectorate rather than the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA).

Members were requested to note the likely intention of the government, as set out in 
the Autumn Statement, to reduce the percentage of major applications allowed at 
appeal from 20% to 10%, to avoid a Local Planning Authority being placed into 
‘Special Measures’, the likely intention of the government, as set to halve the length 
of time a Local Planning Authority will have to determine a planning application from 



twenty six weeks to thirteen weeks, after which time a fee refund should be given if 
the application has not been determined and no extension of time had been agreed.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

CALCULATION OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2016/17
6 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources seeking 
approval of the statutory council tax base calculation for 2016/17, calculated in 
accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) 
Regulations 2012.  The Committee were also requested to approve the precept 
payment dates for 2016/17.

The purpose of the report was to fulfil the Council’s requirements under Section 33 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended); to request that the council 
tax base expressed as “band D equivalent properties”, be approved at £52,114 for 
2016/17 (£50,744 2015/16); and, to seek approval of the proposed precepts payment 
schedule as detailed in paragraph 3.19 of the submitted report.

Alternatives considered: the Council has a statutory requirement to calculate and 
approve a Council Tax Base each financial year. 

DECIDED – That (1) for the purposes of section 33 of the local Government 
Finance Act 1992 (as amended), the council tax base expressed as “band D 
equivalent properties”, be approved at £52,114 for 2016/17;
(2) the proposed precepts payment schedule detailed in paragraph 3.19 of the 
submitted report be approved.

SETTING OF THE BUSINESS RATES  BASE 2016/17
7 The Director of Resources introduced a report seeking approval for the setting 
of the business rates baseline for 2016/17 in accordance with the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 and the Non-Domestic Rating Regulations 2013.  Members were 
requested to approve the precept payment dates for 2016/17. Members were 
requested to approve the draft business rate baseline figure of £63.098m for 2016/17 
subject to any changes which may result from the issue of the Department for 
Communities & Local Government (DCLG) guidance on completion of the 2016/17 
business baseline, due in January 2016; and to approve that the Director of 
Resources, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder, be authorised to conclude and 
agree the final business baseline return (NNDR1) due on the 31st January 2016 
should the final information yet to be received from DCLG change the baseline for 
2016/17.  The Committee were also requested to approve the precepts payment 
schedule detailed in paragraph 3.15 of the submitted report.
 
In January of each year the Authority is required to set an estimated business rates 
income yield for the following year which is to be used to inform Central Government 
and Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue.

No alternative were considered as the Council has a statutory requirement to 
estimate and set a Business Rates Baseline each financial year.
 
DECIDED – That (1) the business rates baseline for 2016/17 be approved as 
detailed within the submitted report;
(2)  the Director of Resources, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Finance, be authorised to conclude and agree the final business baseline 
return (NNDR1) due on the 31st January 2016, should the final information yet 
to be received from DCLG change the baseline for 2016/17;



(3) the precepts payment schedule as detailed in paragraph 3.15 of the 
submitted report, be approved.



 

Subject: Applications for Town Green or 
Village Green

Status: For Publication

Report to: Planning and Licensing Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Corporate 
and Regulation

Date: Tuesday, 9 February 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:    deborah.sharp@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Deborah Sharp

Tel: Tel: 01706 924753

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

Key Decision: 

1 Purpose of the report

1.1      To invite the Committee to recommend the following:

a) To delegate to another local authority, to be selected by the Head of Legal 
Governance and Reform, the function of considering and determining the two  
current applications and responding to any legal challenge arising from that 
determination; and

b) To authorise the payment of such costs incurred by that authority in 
discharging the delegated function

2 Recommendations

2.1     To add an additional element of independence and impartiality to the statutory 
process by delegating the function of considering and determining the two current 
applications and responding to any legal challenge arising from that determination and 
to authorise the payment of such costs 

3 Background

3.1      The Council as the Registration Authority for common land in the Borough of 
Rochdale has received two applications to register land, both of which areas of 
land are in Council Ownership, as a town or village green. To add an additional 
element of independence and impartiality to the statutory process, the 
Committee is asked to consider the delegation to another local authority of the 
Registration Authority function of considering and determining the present 
applications

3.2 The Council is the Registration Authority for the purposes of the Commons 
Registration Act 1965. A Registration Authority is responsible for maintaining 
the registers for public inspection and for processing and determining 
applications for the registration of local land as common land or as a town or 
village green.  This Act imposed a duty on the Council to consider all 



applications to register land as a town or village green within the Borough. The 
procedure for registration was laid down in the Commons Registration (New 
Land) Regulations 1969. The Commons Act 2006 subsequently replaced the 
Commons Registration Act 1965. The Commons Act requires Registration 
Authorities to determine town and village green applications, but no special 
provisions have been included in the legislation for Registration Authorities to 
deal with applications relating to their own land. It seems therefore that 
Parliament has decided that no alternative arrangements  are required in such 
cases, leaving the handling of such matters to the integrity of the individual 
Registration Authorities.

3.3 Members will be familiar with the principle that justice must not only be done 
but must be seen to be done--a principal reflected in the Human Rights Act 
1998 which requires that “In determining of his civil rights everyone is entitled 
to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and 
impartial tribunal established by law”. A procedure which requires a party to act 
as judge in their own cause could offend human rights principles and attract a 
legal challenge .The 2006  regulations which the Council must follow in dealing 
with town green applications do not offer a mechanism for addressing that 
issue. However, section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 authorises a 
local authority to arrange for the discharge of any of their functions by another 
local authority. If the Council were to arrange for the current applications to be 
considered and determined by another local authority, that would introduce into 
the procedure an element of independence and impartiality which it might 
otherwise be said to lack. 

The Council would, of course, be required to meet the costs incurred by the 
other authority in discharging the delegated function.
Whilst there are of course financial implications to the Council where Council 
owned land is involved, provided they are not excessive and deemed 
reasonable for the complexity of the case, they are both justified and 
proportionate to the risks set out in this report and ultimately in the best 
interests of the public, the democratic process and the Council, financially, 
reputationally and professionally.

3.4 It is all the more important therefore that where the Registration Authority is 
both the Landowner and sitting in a quasi-judicial capacity to determine an 
application the potential for bias to arise which may either jeopardise the right 
to a fair hearing (or be seen to), or put the Council at increased risk of 
challenge is recognised and addressed.

3.5 Despite the introduction of the Commons Act 2006, the 1969 Regulations 
continue to be the method by which applications to register a town or village 
green are processed.

3.6 Under the Regulations, an application is made on the prescribed form and must 
be accompanied by a statutory declaration. The Council, once it is satisfied the 
application is in order, that is, that its duly made, is under a duty to advertise it 
in the local newspaper and notify the landowner (if known) and any person 
known to have an interest in the land. A period of six weeks is allowed for 
objections to be lodged. If any objections are received, the applicant is given 
the opportunity to comment on them. At the end of the consultation process, 
the evidence submitted for and against the application has to be considered 
and a decision taken on whether the application satisfies the statutory 
requirements for registration.



3.7 The statutory requirements for registration are (in summary) that a significant 
number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood within a 
locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports and pastimes on the land for 
at least 20 years. The applicant must satisfy the Registration Authority that the 
statutory requirements are met in their entirety. If not, the application will fail. 
Applications will be determined on issues of fact, and sometimes potentially 
quite complex legal points.

3.8 The consequence of registration as a town or village green is that land can be 
used for recreational use and nothing should be done which will interfere with 
these activities. Registration can therefore be destructive of the value of land to 
its owner, as the owner is severely restricted in what future use can be made of 
the land, with limited legal redress. For this reason, applications to register land 
as town or village green are often opposed by the landowner. Iti s therefore 
very important for the Commons Registration Authority to make its decision 
properly and judiciously to ensure it comes to the correct decision properly 
directed in law. This will also ensure that neither party can successfully 
challenge its decision, either in law or on the facts.   

3.9 The first application is dated 9 October 2015 (having been originally submitted 
on 22 March 2015) for the registration of land at Cut Lane Norden Rochdale as 
a Town or Village Green has been received from Friends of Heritage Green of 
24 Shearing Avenue, Norden, Rochdale.

3.10 In accordance with the relevant statutory provisions, the application has been 
allotted the number VG01/15 and has been advertised. No objections have 
been received.  Arrangements now need to be made for the determination of 
the application.

3.11 The second application is dated 5 May 2015 for the registration of land at Swift 
Road Bamford Rochdale as a Town or Village Green has been received from 
Janice Arden of 19 Swift Road Bamford Rochdale.

3.12 In accordance with the relevant statutory provisions, the application has been 
allotted the number VG02/15 and has been advertised. One objection has 
subsequently been received, and the applicants’ comments on the objection 
have been obtained.  Arrangements now need to be made for the 
determination of the application.

Alternatives considered

3.         A practice has been developing amongst local authorities across the country 
where they appoint an independent expert (often a Barrister) who conducts a 
non-statutory public inquiry along the lines of a planning inquiry.

           The Council has received legal advice advising that there is presently a risk that 
a Commons Registration Authority cannot escape the problem of conflict of 
interest by appointing counsel to hold a non-statutory inquiry. 

           

4 Financial Implications

4.1 The Council will be required to meet the costs incurred by the other local 
authority in discharging the delegated function, which may include use of 
Counsel. Such costs are likely to be in the order of £10000.00.



5 Legal Implications

5.1 The role of the registration authority and the definition of ‘town green’ are set 
out in the Commons Registration Act 1965.

5.2 Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 authorises a local authority to 
arrange for the discharge of any of their functions by another local authority.

5.3 The use of an alternative Registration Authority would add an additional 
element of independence and impartiality and reduce the risk of legal 
challenge.

5.4      There is no real downside to such a delegation whereas it could be costly for a 
Commons Registration Authority to face a judicial review application on the 
ground of procedural impropriety.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 N/A

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 There is particular merit in this approach where the Council is not only required to 
act as Registration Authority but is also landowner, as it removes any perception of 
adverse conflict of interests, predetermination or bias, particularly where the Council 
as landowner is objecting to the application, by allowing the case for and against the 
applications to be tested before an independent local authority and professionally 
qualified inspectors knowledgeable in this area of law.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no (significant) equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection



Subject: Submitted Planning Applications Status:  For Publication

Report to:  Planning and Licensing Committee Date:         9 February 2016 ^DS,DATEACTCOM.DCAPPL,21;   

Report of: Director of Economy and Environment

Author: See individual agenda reports

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 To provide recommendations to the Committee on planning applications or related 
consents submitted to the Council and requiring the consideration and/or determination 
of the Committee in accordance with the Council’s approved Scheme of Delegation.

1.2 To provide information on any other planning or development related matters which 
may affect the work of the Committee.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Recommendations in respect of individual planning applications are as detailed in the 
following papers.

3. STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The submitted applications on this agenda are to be determined in accordance with the 
provisions of relevant legislation, including the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Planning and 
Compensation Act 1991, Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Planning Act 
2008, Localism Act 2011 and the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 together with any Directions and 
Regulations which support that legislation.  

3.2 Planning law requires that applications be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Where relevant, 
any such material considerations will be referred to in the report.

    The Development Plan

3.3 All planning applications referred to in this report have been assessed against the 
relevant policies and proposals of the development plan for the Borough (currently the 
adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan 2006) and any Supplementary Planning 
Documents or Guidance adopted by the Council.  



National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

3.4 In addition, in assessing the submitted planning applications, there is a requirement to 
have regard to relevant national policies as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) the policies of which are a material consideration.  Where relevant, 
the provisions of the NPPF and any other relevant national guidance will be referred to 
in the report.

4. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for Members and Officers dealing with 
Planning Matters.  Members and Officers are required to have full regard to the Code 
in discharging their responsibilities and duties in relation to planning matters on behalf 
of the Council.  The Code seeks to ensure that all decision making is governed by an 
open and transparent process and represents a standard against which the conduct of 
Officers and Member sitting on the Committee will be judged.  

4.2 A Declaration of Member Interests Register is taken prior to the commencement of the 
Committee meeting.  Advice on whether any Member sitting on the Committee ought to 
declare any interest on any item on the submitted agenda should be obtained from the 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services or the Head of Planning.  

4.3 The Council’s Standards Committee will monitor the operation of this Code of Conduct.   

5. EQUALITIES IMPACTS

5.1 The above Acts require Local Planning Authorities to consider planning applications on 
their individual merits having regard to the development plan and other material 
planning considerations.

5.2 The Equality Act 2010 protects people from discrimination on the basis of certain 
characteristics which are known as protected characteristics.  These protected 
characteristics are Age, Disability, Gender Reassignment, Marriage or Civil 
Partnership, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race, Religion or Belief, Sex (Gender), Sexual 
Orientation, socio-economic status and Carer.

5.3 In applying the Equality Act 2010, the Council is required to consider the effects of its 
decisions on different groups protected from discrimination, including a duty to make 
reasonable adjustments.  In taking account of all material planning considerations, 
including Council policy as set out in the Unitary Development Plan and the National 
Planning Policy Framework, the Director (Economy and Environment) has concluded 
all opportunities to promote equality through the planning process have been taken, or 
where adjustments cannot be made, these are justified on the basis of the planning 
merits of the development proposal.  

5.4 The Rochdale and District Disabled Access Working Group may comment on relevant 
planning applications. Where comments are received, these will be included within the 
reported to Committee.  Consideration is given in designing access when dealing with 
the planning applications. Where applicable, any issues relating to these matters or 
other equal opportunity matters will be referred to in individual planning application 
reports.

6.      Human Rights Act 1998 considerations

6.1   The submitted applications need to be considered against the provisions of the Human 
Rights Act 1998.  Under Article 6, the applications (and those third parties, including 



local residents, who have made representations) have the right to a fair hearing and to 
this end the Committee must give full consideration to their comments.

6.2 Article 8 and Protocol 1 Article 1 confer(s) a right of respect or a person’s home, other 
land and business assets.  In taking account of all material considerations, including 
Council policy as set out in the Unitary Development Plan, the Director (Economy and 
Environment) has concluded that some rights conferred by these Articles on the 
applicant(s)/objectors/residents and other occupiers and owners of nearby land that 
might be affected may be interfered with but that that interference is in accordance with 
the law and justified by being in the public interest and on the basis of the planning 
merits of the development proposal.  He believes that any restriction on these rights 
posed by approval of the application is proportionate to the wider benefits of approval 
and that such a decision falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts.

Background Papers

      The background papers relevant to the planning applications to be considered on this agenda 
will include:-

1.  The Planning application file and its contents which will include:

i)  The planning application form and supporting information, together with scaled 
drawings/plans and relevant statutory certificates.

ii) Letters of response from statutory and other consultees who may have been consulted 
or commented on the planning application

iii) Letters and documents received from interested parties.
iv) Notes of telephone conversations, meetings and any information received and of 

relevance to the submitted proposal
 

2. For any previous planning application referred to in the agenda report or in the application 
file, the planning application forms and the decision on that proposal

3. Such other papers (if any) received after the preparation of individual reports on planning 
applications on this agenda (to be reported verbally at the meeting).

       4. Any other guidance or procedural documents adopted by the Council and of relevance to 
the recommendation and/or determination of any submitted planning applications or related 
consents

For further information about this report, or if you wish to see any background
papers please contact: Sharon Hill, Senior Business Support Officer, in Economy and 
Environment, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone (01706) 924305 or via the online planning services at: 
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning


Application Number: 15/01390/HOUS    Ward: Milkstone And Deeplish      

Proposal: Single storey front extension, first floor rear extension and loft conversion 
with roof lights (Resubmission)

Site Address: 77 Tweedale Street Rochdale OL11 3TZ  

Applicant: Mr Abdul Rauf
                  

RECOMMENDATION: Refuse

UPDATE AND DELEGATION SCHEME

The application was considered by the Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee at their 
meeting of 26 January 2016. Members of the Committee resolved, by 5 votes to 4, that they 
would be minded to grant the application and referred it to the Planning and Licensing 
Committee in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation as this resolution was 
contrary to a previous decision of the Council (ref. 15/000795/HOUS). 

Members of the Planning and Licensing Committee are entitled to approve or refuse the 
application. 



SITE

The site is a mid-terraced property, located along Tweedale Street in Rochdale.  The site is 
within a mixed residential and commercial area. To the rear and side elevation are 
neighbouring residential and commercial properties. To the front elevation is a highway.

PROPOSAL

This application seeks permission for a first floor rear extension, single storey front porch and 
roof lights to the front and rear elevation.

The proposed rear extension would project rearwards by 1.25m at first floor level, adjacent to 
the boundary with No. 75, running for a width of 3.15m. It would have a sloping roof, 
connecting to the existing roof, with a height to the eaves of 6.4m, and 6.8m to the highest 
point.

The proposed front extension would project forwards by 1.12m, and would cover the width of 
the front of the property, adjacent to common boundaries with Nos. 75 and 79 Tweedale 
Street. The front extension would have a sloping roof to a height of 3.2m, and a height to the 
eaves of 2.6m.

To the rear at first floor level, new glazed windows are proposed within each elevation of the 
extension, as it is a ‘conservatory style’ proposal. Four new windows and a door are proposed 
to the front elevation within the proposed front porch. Two new roof lights are also proposed, 
one to the front and one to the rear of the property.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The Department for Communities and Local Government published the NPPF on 27 March 
2012.  The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these are 
expected to be applied.  

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

The government published its NPPG on 6 March 2014. This is intended to complement the 
NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning guidance, whilst rationalising and 
streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been 
cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the NPPG or other national advice in the 
Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

Unitary Development Plan (UDP): 

G/D/1              Defined Urban Area

G/H/1              Housing
H/11                Residential Extensions

G/BE/1            Design Quality
BE/2                Design Criteria for New Development



Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD):
Supplementary Planning Guidance note ‘Guidelines and Standards for Residential 
Development’.
Milkstone, Deeplish and Newbold SPD

RELEVANT SITE HISTORY

86/D19434 Two storey rear extension to replace existing and single storey extension to 
rear of dwellinghouse – Granted subject to condition

01/D39425 Single storey rear extension to dwelling – Granted subject to conditions

06/D46997 Single storey rear extension to dwelling – Granted subject to conditions

15/00416 Front porch and first floor rear extension - Withdrawn

15/00795 Single storey front extension, first floor rear extension and loft conversion with 
roof lights (Resubmission of 15/00416/HOUS) – Refused, for the following 
reason:

The proposed front extension, due to its siting, scale, design, massing, and forward projection, 
would appear unduly prominent and obtrusive in the street scene and would be out of 
character with the host dwelling and those within the street scene. The proposal is therefore 
contrary to Policies H/11 and BE/2 of the Rochdale Unitary Development Plan and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

None
 
REPRESENTATIONS

Letters of notification were sent to surrounding neighbours and no representations have been 
received.

ANALYSIS

Principle of development

The application site is allocated as Defined Urban Area under the Rochdale Unitary 
Development Plan. Policy G/D/1 is therefore relevant to any applications on the site and in the 
supporting text to this policy it is established that new development should be located in the 
urban area, so as to support urban regeneration and to protect the countryside. 

With the above policy in mind, it is considered that subject to the appropriate assessment of 
matters such as amenity, highway safety and the environment, that the principle of developing 
the site with residential extensions is acceptable.

Residential Amenity

Policy H/11 of the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan requires that proposals should 
not unduly affect the privacy or amenity of adjoining residents through overlooking, 
overshadowing, loss of outlook or daylight.

The SPD – Guidelines for Residential Development also provides additional advice on the 
appropriateness of residential extensions and advises that where single extensions abut a 



boundary with a neighbouring property, the level of projection should not exceed 3.0 metres, 
and where two storey extensions abut a boundary with a neighbouring property, the level of 
projection should not exceed 2.4 metres.

With regard to No. 75 Tweedale Street, the rear extension would not project beyond the rear 
wall of this property, and projects 1.25m from the rear of the host property. It is considered that 
the first floor rear extension proposal is considered to be acceptable when considering the 
impact upon the occupants of No. 75, and this element is considered to be in accordance with 
the guidelines specified within the SPD.

With regards to No. 79, the first floor rear extension would not project beyond the rear wall of 
the existing first floor bathroom at the property. It is considered therefore that the first floor rear 
extension proposal is considered to be acceptable when considering the impact upon the 
occupants of No. 79, and this element is considered to be in accordance with the guidelines 
specified within the SPD.

The front porch would project forward of the host property by 1.12m. It is considered that the 
front porch is considered to be acceptable when considering the impact upon the occupants of 
Nos. 75 and 79, and this element is considered to be in accordance with the guidelines 
specified within the SPD.

The first floor rear extension would result in a reduction of the outlook of the first floor rooms at 
the host property, because of the closer proximity to the side elevation of No. 42 Castlemere 
Street. However, it is considered that many of the terraced properties in this area have 
restricted rear outlooks due to the close proximity to other properties at the rear, and in light of 
this the rear extension is considered to be acceptable in this regard. No. 42 does not include a 
habitable room window within this side elevation, and so the impact upon this property is 
considered acceptable. 

It is also considered that the proposed roof lights would have no undue impact upon No. 42 for 
the same reason as above, and the roof light to the front of the property would not cause harm 
upon the properties to the front.

No. 79 benefits from a current permission, granted in 2014, for a change of use to a hair and 
beauty salon, and alterations to the front and rear elevations. However, it is not considered 
that this application would have any adverse impact on either property following the possible 
implementation of this permission.

In conclusion, it is considered that no unacceptable harm would be caused to Nos. 79 and 79 
Tweedale Street, and No. 42 Castlemere Street, as a result of the first floor rear extension and 
front porch. The application is therefore considered acceptable in this regard, in accordance 
with Policy H/11 of the UDP, and the SPD.

Visual Amenity

Policies G/BE/1 and BE/2 of the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan relate to design 
quality and design criteria for new development and establish that it should contribute to the 
provision of an attractive, safe and accessible built environment. Additionally, new 
development proposals are also required to demonstrate good design. 

As the application relates to a residential extension, policy H/11 is also relevant and this 
requires that development is compatible with the property to be extended in terms of scale, 
size, design and building materials. 

The National Planning Policy Framework has as one of its core principles the need to always 
seek to secure high quality design. Permission should be refused for development of poor 



design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of 
an area and the way that it functions.

The rear extension would consist of a first floor addition. The application form states that this 
extension would be constructed from materials which match the host property. A condition 
could be attached to any approval to ensure the materials match the host property. Although 
this part of the extension would result in additional built development at the rear of the parent 
dwelling, the extension would not be easily visible from any public vantage points (apart from 
via the private gated alleyway) and so there would be no significant harm to the character of 
the area.

The front of the site is visible from public vantage points, located directly adjacent to Tweedale 
Street. When viewed from the front of the site, it is considered that the proposed front 
extension would appear prominent and obtrusive when viewed alongside the existing terraced 
properties along this section of highway.  Although the commercial properties on the ends of 
the row are set closer to the highway, the property forms one of a row of residential properties 
that are set back and benefit from small front yard areas providing defensible space 
immediately to the front of the residential properties.  It is noted that no front extensions 
currently exist in the immediate vicinity and certainly there are no front extensions on the 
residential properties.  The prosed front extension would occupy the entire width of the 
property and it is considered that the siting, scale and massing of the proposed front extension 
in close proximity to the street scene would form an unduly prominent and obtrusive form of 
development in the street scene to the detriment of the character and appearance of the 
property and the dwellings within the row.  It would also remove the area of defensible space 
to the front of the property to the detriment of the character and appearance of the property.  

In light of the above it is considered that the proposed front extension would be unduly 
prominent and obtrusive, due to its siting, scale and massing. The proposed extension would 
be harmful to visual amenity, the street scene and the character of the area. The application is 
therefore contrary to Policies BE/2 and H/11 of the UDP, and is recommended for refusal.

RECOMMENDATION

REFUSE for the following reason:

1 The proposed front extension, due to its siting, scale, design, massing, and forward 
projection, would appear unduly prominent and obtrusive in the street scene and would 
be out of character with the host dwelling and those within the street scene. The 
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies H/11 and BE/2 of the Rochdale Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Report Author Ben Sandover

____________________________________________




	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	SummaryOFinterests

	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 12/01/2016 Planning and Licensing Committee
	Minutes


	3 Applications for Town Green or Village Green
	4 Submitted Planning Applications
	6 Planning Appeals Update

